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Solicitation Number: DCTO‐2010‐R‐0115 
Questions 

1. Section B.3, PRICE SCHEDULE, Item Number 0003 states that Phase IIb is the implementation of 
Portfolio Management, Lease Administration, Cost Administration, Cost Chargeback and 
Invoicing and Portfolio Forecasting modules. There is no mention of a Pilot Program for these 
modules.  Is that correct, or should there be another Line Item for a Pilot Program for the three 
buildings that were identified for Item Number 0001? 

a. That is correct.  There is no Pilot Program for these modules. 
 

2. Section 4.1.1 states that the polylines for building at One Judiciary Square have been completed.  
What were the standards that were used in completing the polylines (IFMA, BOMA, etc.) and 
what were the CAD standards that were used (AEC, National CAD Standards)?  

a. Polylining used BOMA standards 
b. AutoCAD 2006; Client Layer Standard based on the The American Institute of Architects 

(AIA), Construction Specifications Institute (CSI), and National Institute of Building Sciences 
(NIBS) United States National CAD Standard® (NCS) Version 4.0, released in 2008. 
 

3. What is the total area for the two buildings that need to be polylined for use within ARCHIBUS? 
a. Waterfront  East:  268,448 
b. Waterfront West: 277,519 

       Total: 545 967 
 

4. Will the vendor need to undertake and complete space surveys to validate and update floor 
plans for the two leased buildings (Waterfront East and Waterfront West) in the Pilot Phase? 

a. No – District just moved into these facilities in 2010. 
 

5. How current are the floor plans for the remaining building in Phase II of the project? Will the 
vendor need to undertake and complete space surveys to validate and update floor plans for all 
the buildings in Phase IIa of the project, totaling approximately 10 million square feet of space? 

a. Floorplans for owned space are current based on condition assessments that were 
conducted in 2009.  Floor plans for leased space are mostly current, but do depend 
upon the lease year.  

 
6. Will the vendor need to undertake and complete space surveys to validate and update floor 

plans for all the buildings in item 0005 of the project, totaling approximately 510,000 square 
feet of space? 

a. Floorplans for approximately 90% of DPR sites are current based upon condition 
assessments that were conducted in 2009.  Note that buildings added after those 
reports would need an assessment. 

 
7. Will the vendor need to undertake and complete space surveys to validate and update floor 

plans for all the buildings in item 0006 of the project, totaling approximately 530,000 square 
feet of space? 

a. Floorplans for an estimated 90% of the MPD/FEMS sites are current based upon 
condition assessments that were conducted in 2009.  Note that buildings added after 
those reports would need an assessment. 

 



8. Will the vendor need to undertake and complete space surveys to validate and update floor 
plans for all the buildings in item 0007 of the project, totaling approximately 12.4 million square 
feet of space? 

a. Potentially, yes.  If the District decides to house all school locations under DRES, there 
would need to be a space survey conducted for the school portfolio. 

 
9. Section 4.3.1, Space Management Modules, Pilot state that the period of performance is ninety 

(90) days. Can we assume that this phase of the project begins after the completion of the 
requirements described under Section 4.1., Finalize Requirements Plan states that the Period of 
Performance is 90 days? 

a. According to section F.3 Deliverables, the Requirements Plan is due 6‐8 weeks after 
contract award.  Pilot will begin upon completion of Requirements Plan and Pilot Project 
Concept Plan.   

 
10. Which CAD software is used by DRES, and what is the version of the software? 

a. DRES does not use CAD software, only CAD viewer. 
 

11. Does DRES have a development, testing, production, and/or a training environment that will be 
used for the Pilot Phase of the project? 

a. Yes 
 

12. Does DRES have a development, testing, production, and/or a training environment that will be 
used for the roll‐out of the project for the entire portfolio?  

a. Yes 
 

13. Will the vendor have remote access to these environments, or will work have to be completed 
at DRES’ facilities?  

a. Yes, remote access will be granted.  That said, there will be certain times where vendor 
is expected to be onsite for various technical components of the work.  DRES will grant 
Contractor with remote access into the development environment through VPN tunnels 
using IP address schemes and RSA Secure ID tokens.  

 
14. How many systems does DRES anticipate integrating with the ARCHIBUS application for the 

space Management modules? Please list the systems/applications that will need to be 
integrated?  

a. DRES expects vendor to provide recommendations regarding the integration of legacy 
systems.  That said, the following systems are candidates for integration:   

i. FAST (Remedy based solution) 
ii. Energy Cap 
iii. Prolog/Primavera/iPlan 
iv. Excel Spread Sheets 

 
15. Is it anticipated that data will only be received from the external applications, or will data need 

to be sent back to any of these external applications from the Space Management modules? 
a. At this time it is anticipated that data will only be received. 

 



16. How many systems does DRES anticipate integrating with the ARCHIBUS application for the 
Lease Management modules? Please list the systems/applications that will need to be 
integrated? 

a. See response to question 14.   
 

17. Is it anticipated that data will only be received from the external applications, or will data need 
to be sent back to any of these external applications from the Lease Management modules? 

a. At this time it is anticipated that data will only be received. 
 

18. Section H.9.1.1, Mandatory Subcontracting Requirements states that 35% of the dollar volume 
must be sub‐contracted to a certified small business. Does a registration with the Small Business 
Association, and their certification of the firm as a 8(a) business meet the requirements for the 
firm to be considered a small business?  No 
 

19. Does the subcontracting plan need to be notarized by a District of Columbia notary, or can they 
be authorized by the state they are presently working in?   Yes 

 
Question  

 

#1  On page 42, Section M.3.1 part a) Technical Approach the paragraph references “Section 
C.5.4”.  We assume this to refer to Section C.4 in its entirety.  Will the District please verify 
this assumption. 

 Correct 

 

   #2   On page 42, Section M.3.1 part c) Project Management Approach the paragraph 
 references “Section C.5.3”.  We assume this to refer to Sections C.4.3 – C.4.5.  Will the 
 District please verify this assumption. 

Correct 

 

#3  We would like to confirm the number of buildings and square footage covered under Price 
 Schedule Item number 0003:  Phase IIb.  There appears to be conflicting references to the 
 total number of buildings and square footage to be addressed.   

 The Phase I Pilot includes 3 building and 1.4 million SF and Phase IIa includes “7.5 million 
 square feet of owned space (190 buildings) and 2.5 million square feet of leased space (80 
 buildings).  Phase IIb includes the same square footage as Phase IIa though the number of 
 leased buildings is only 78.  Are we to assume that the 3 buildings and 1.4 million SF 
 included in the Phase 1 Space Management Pilot will not be included in the Phase IIb 
 Lease effort? 

Correct.   



 

 Also, there is an additional reference on p. 3, Section C.3 that states the District occupies 
 3.5 million square feet of leased space.   

The current DRES portfolio is 3.5 million square feet.  For the purpose of the RFP, vendor will be 
expected to work with buildings that will remain within the DRES portfolio long term.  Leases 
expected to expire within the next two years, comprising approximately 600,000 square feet are 
not included in project scope.  

 

 Will the District please confirm the square footages required under Price Schedule item 
 0003? 

There was an error in the RFP.  Phase IIa encompasses 78 buildings for a total of approximately 
2.5 million square feet (the remaining two buildings and 500,000 square feet were addressed in 
the Pilot).  Phase IIb represents approximately 80 buildings accounting for 3M square feet of 
leased space. 

        

#4  Will the District also please confirm that there is to be no Lease Management Pilot?  

 Correct 

#5    Will the District please confirm that bidders are to quote the implementation of ARCHIBUS 
 v18.2 and not v19.1? 

 Correct 

 

#6    It is our assumption that the effort required to develop all baseline requirements should be 
accounted for within the pricing of Price Schedule Item number 0001:  Phase I: Pilot.   Will 
the District please confirm if this is a correct assumption? 

 Correct 

 


